Worcestershire County Council

Agenda

Appointments Etc Panel

Wednesday, 17 August 2016, 2.30 pm
County Hall, Worcester

This document can be made available in other formats (large print, audio tape, computer disk and
Braille) on request from Democratic Services on telephone number 01905 728713 or by emailing
democraticServices@worcestershire.gov.uk

If you can not understand the contents of this document and do not have access to anyone who can translate it for you, please contact 01905 765765 for help.
A | SR T G wfeier Ry o0 A1 S @92 S S S S To SHfRi6e (8 A1 e, SR i N & 01905 765765 T Wil S| (Bengali)
A - NS ACST A AT R AR R LG AT A BSOS R RS - ST 01005 765765 ZskK(E) - (Cantonese)
Wil id, a0 S A ST P ZEATATAT AR Z b FLEEAT A Gl e o ) A8l B, 3ER 4T 01905 765765 72k Hilh. (Mandarin)

Polski ezeli nie rozumiejg Parstwo tresci tego dokumentu i nie znajg nikogo, kto mogiby go dla Panstwa przettumaczyé, prosze zadzwoni¢ pod numer 01905 765765 w celu uzyskania pomocy. (Polish)
Portugués. Se nao conseguir compreender o contetdo deste documento e ndo conhecer ninguém que lho possa traduzir, contacte o 01905 765765 para obter assisténcia. (Portuguese)
Espaiiol. Si no comprende el contenido de este documento ni conoce a nadie que puéda traducirselo, puede solicitar ayuda llamando al teléfono 01905 765765. (Spanish)

Turkge. Bu dokiimanin igerigini anlayamazsaniz veya dokimani sizin igin tercime edebilecek birisine ulagamiyorsaniz, litfen yardim igin 01905 765765 numarali telefonu arayiniz. (Turkish)
(Urdu) -cs S -l 5 3 01905 7B5765 3 S 230 p S ol ¢ 55 s € man 518 (ol I Sl pa o pd flans S o 53 padd ) (a1 O sl s s S Y e (S sl ol ol B1 )

(Kurdish) 5 58 61513 5 01905 TE5765 cso e 52 5  jlaled a3 1052 0 %) e 5 o8 CABL Ly o 0 ey spellley g (S5 0 5 o (08B 1 35 o8 3 5ue 59358

Urrdt) 7 gt few enaRE © veWa AW &dt Raw w3 fait wifsd fewadt da ude adt 9, § ferer 303 wEt wgew 99 WA, I fagur @ed Hew BET 01905 765765 '3 @5 adl (Punjabi)

Find out more online:
www.worcestershire.gov.uk

worcestershire
county council




DISCLOSING INTERESTS

There are now 2 types of interests:
'Disclosable pecuniary interests' and 'other disclosable interests'

WHAT IS A 'DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST' (DPI)?

e Any employment, office, trade or vocation carried on for profit or gain

e Sponsorship by a 3" party of your member or election expenses

e Any contract for goods, services or works between the Council and you, a firm where
you are a partner/director, or company in which you hold shares

e Interests in land in Worcestershire (including licence to occupy for a month or longer)

e Shares etc (with either a total nominal value above £25,000 or 1% of the total issued
share capital) in companies with a place of business or land in Worcestershire.

NB Your DPIs include the interests of your spouse/partner as well as you

WHAT MUST | DO WITH A DPI?
e Register it within 28 days and
e Declare it where you have a DPI in a matter at a particular meeting
- you must not participate and you must withdraw.
NB It is a criminal offence to participate in matters in which you have a DPI

WHAT ABOUT 'OTHER DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS'?
¢ No need to register them but
e You must declare them at a particular meeting where:
Youl/your family/person or body with whom you are associated have
a pecuniary interest in or close connection with the matter under discussion.

WHAT ABOUT MEMBERSHIP OF ANOTHER AUTHORITY OR PUBLIC BODY?
You will not normally even need to declare this as an interest. The only exception is where the

conflict of interest is so significant it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public
interest.

DO I HAVE TO WITHDRAW IF | HAVE A DISCLOSABLE INTEREST WHICH ISN'T A DPI?
Not normally. You must withdraw only if it:
e affects your pecuniary interests OR
relates to a planning or regulatory matter
e AND itis seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest.

DON'T FORGET

e If you have a disclosable interest at a meeting you must disclose both its existence
and nature — 'as noted/recorded’ is insufficient

e Declarations must relate to specific business on the agenda

- General scattergun declarations are not needed and achieve little

e Breaches of most of the DPI provisions are now criminal offences which may be
referred to the police which can on conviction by a court lead to fines up to £5,000
and disqualification up to 5 years

e Formal dispensation in respect of interests can be sought in appropriate cases.

Simon Mallinson Head of Legal and Democratic Services July 2012 WCC/SPM summary/f



Appointments Etc Panel
Wednesday, 17 August 2016, 2.30 pm, County Hall

Membership:

Mr G J Vickery and Mr T A L Wells

Health Representatives Caroline Gamlin — Faculty of Public Health
in Attendance: Sue Ibbotson — Public Health England

Simon Trickett — Clinical Commissioning Group

Mr S E Geraghty (Chairman), Mrs S L Blagg, Mr J H Smith,

Agenda
Item No Subject Page No
1 Named Substitutes
2 Apologies and Declarations of Interest
3 Election of Chairman
4 Confirmation of Minutes
To authorise the procedure for confirming and signing the Minutes of this
meeting. It is recommended that the Minutes be circulated to Members
of the Panel and be signed by the Chairman in light of any comments on
their accuracy received within 7 days of their circulation.
5 Exclusion of Press and Public
The Panel will be asked to exclude the press and public from the
meeting for the following item as it is likely that exempt information
relating to any individual will be disclosed and the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosure.
6 Appointment of the Director of Public Health 1-20

Agenda produced and published by Simon Mallinson, Head of Legal and Democratic Services, County Hall,
Spetchley Road, Worcester WR5 2NP

To obtain further information or a copy of this agenda contact Jodie Townsend, Democratic Governance and
Scrutiny Manager on Tel: 01905 844871 or email: JTownsend1l@worcestershire.gov.uk

Reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council's website.
Date of Issue: Tuesday, 9 August 2016



mailto:JTownsend1@worcestershire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 1



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

‘worcestershire

JOB DESCRIPTION

Post Title: Director of Public Health

Portfolio/Service Area: Public Health
Scale/Grade: Head of Service Band 1 (plus responsibility allowance)
Reporting To: Chief Executive
(Secretary of State for Health through Chief Medical
Officer)
Responsible For: Senior public health management team, including

consultants and registrars in training
Community Safety
Emergency Planning

This is a key leadership role expected to inspire, lead, drive and deliver world
class Public Health Services. As Director of Public Health (DPH) you will have
a strategic corporate role, working across the organisation to challenge and
influence change. The role will be operating in a challenging financial
environment and will be expected to work with the Strategic Leadership Team,
Cabinet, Councillors, with colleagues and partners to help generate and
nurture innovative solutions to deliver excellent, continuously improving
public health outcomes for Worcestershire residents. You will also be expected
to contribute to the organisation's reputation and overall performance through;

e Leading the development and implementation of the authority's strategic
approach to Public Health, co-ordinating this approach with partners and then
embedding it within Worcestershire County Council and the services it
provides as well as across the partnership environment

e Carrying out the statutory responsibilities, duties and obligations allocated to
the DPH, and ensuring adequate performance monitoring is in place to
guarantee the highest standards of professional practice and service delivery

e Working with colleagues and Councillors to drive forward the strategic and
transformational agenda set by Cabinet ensuring that all public health
commissioned services deliver high quality and value for money services.

e Working proactively and closely with colleagues across the organisation to
identify, create and embed the necessary sustainable changes in culture and
practice to meet the strategic and transformational needs and aspirations of
the service and Council. This will include ensuring that the appropriate
structures are set, implemented and maintained to allow these changes to
take effect.

Page 5



APPENDIX A

e Developing and maintaining successful joint working arrangements and
partnerships with other Councils, internal and external service providers, and
regional and local agencies to deliver a high quality, evidence based, cost
effective public health service, representing the Council as an ambassador of
the organisation.

Job Context
The Director of Public Health will understand and enhance the health and
wellbeing of the people of Worcestershire and adopt and approach which:

e Understands the link between economic success and good health and wellbeing
and takes a long term approach to strategic improvement in both.

o Develops a clear, targeted long term strategy that ensures health and social care,
education, housing, jobs and economic policies and infrastructure are shaped in
ways which deliver maximum improvements in health and wellbeing.

¢ Minimises any adverse effects of demographic change by making sure demand
management and community asset-building reduce the need for high cost
services in the medium and longer term.

Statutory functions of the Director of Public Health

The Director of Public Health and Wellbeing is a statutory chief officer of WCC and is
the principal adviser on all health matters to elected members and officers, with a
leadership role spanning all three domains of public health: health improvement,
health protection and healthcare public health. Section 73A(1) of the NHS Act 20086,
inserted by section 30 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012, gives the Director of
Public Health responsibility for:

e all of their local authority’s duties to take steps to improve public health

e any of the Secretary of State’s public health protection or health improvement

¢ functions that s/he delegates to local authorities, either by arrangement or
under regulations — these include services mandated by regulations made
under section 6C of the 2006 Act, inserted by section 18 of the 2012 Act

e exercising their local authority’s functions in planning for, and responding to,
emergencies that present a risk to public health

e their local authority’s role in co-operating with the police, the probation service
and the prison service to assess the risks posed by violent or sexual
offenders

e such other public health functions as the Secretary of State specifies in
regulations

The Director of Public Health will lead a team within WCC, responsible for the
development of a strategic needs assessment for the local population and for the
delivery of:

1. Health Improvement
o Developing healthy, sustainable and cohesive communities through Health and
Wellbeing Board and the wider Council and partners.

o Developing healthy lifestyles for individuals and communities.

e Tackling specific issues based on local needs assessment such as childhood
obesity, smoking.
o Developing a strategy for reducing health inequalities.

Page 6



APPENDIX A

N

. Health Protection

e Dealing with infectious disease threats including food and water borne disease
supported by local Public Health England.

e Preparing for emergencies including pandemic influenza.

e Providing advice and challenge, especially advising on environmental threats
including pollution, noise and contaminated land.

e Co-chairing the Local Health Resilience Partnership when applicable.

3. Health services public health

e Population health care, including oversight and promoting population coverage of
immunisation and screening programmes.

e Supporting the commissioning of appropriate, effective, and equitable health care
from the NHS locally.

o Delivery of mandated support to NHS commissioning, through a locally agreed
Memorandum of Understanding with the CCGs

e Contribute to the integration of health and social care services.

The Director of Public Health will

e Produce an independent annual report on the health of the population

o Be principal adviser to Health and Wellbeing Board in developing a Health and
Wellbeing Strategy based on the assessed needs of the population and proven
interventions to improve health.

e Provide specialist public heath advice to commissioners on priorities for health
and social care spending and the appropriate configuration of services within and
between local authorities.

e Support Local Resilience Forum in developing comprehensive multi agency plans
for the anticipated threats to public health.

e Have full access to the papers and other information that they need to inform and
support their activity, and day to day responsibility for their authority’s ring-fenced
public health budget.

e Be Principal Advisor on all health matters to members and officers across local
government.

o Take lead responsibility for ensuring the prioritisation of spend under the Public
Health Ring-fenced Grant, and for developing a rigorous evidence-based
approach to this.

¢ Lead on embedding an evidence based approach to prevention across the
council, including taking an assets based approach to all Directorates

Professional obligations

The Director of Public Health will be expected to:

o Participate in the organisation’s staff appraisal scheme and departmental audit,
and ensure appraisal and development of any staff for which s/he is responsible.

e Contribute actively to the training programme for Foundation Year
Doctors/Specialty Registrars in Public Health as appropriate, and to the training
of practitioners and primary care professionals within the locality.

e Pursue a programme of CPD, in accordance with Faculty of Public Health
requirements, or other recognised body, and undertake revalidation, professional
appraisal, audit or other measures required to remain on the GMC/GDC

Page 7



APPENDIX A

Specialist Register or the UK Public Health (Specialist) Register or other
specialist register as appropriate.

e Practise in accordance with all relevant sections of the General Medical Council’s
Good Medical Practice (if medically qualified) and the Faculty of Public Health’s
Good Public Health Practice.

e Ensure that the public health team works closely with the University of
Worcestershire in developing a learning community of public health
professionals creating shared learning opportunities at specialist and
practitioner levels.

General Duties:

Promotes equality of opportunity and diversity for all employees and service
users in line with the Council’s policies and practices.

Maintains personal and professional development to meet the changing demands
of the job, participates in appropriate training/development activities and
encourages and supports staff in their development and training.

Undertakes such other duties, training and/or hours of work as may be
reasonably required and which are consistent with the general level of
responsibility of this job.

Discharges the health and safety duties commensurate with the post and
participates in the Council’'s emergency response arrangements as directed.

Presents a positive image of the Directorate and the County Council at all times,
as well as maintaining effective relationships with colleagues and external
partners and other stakeholders.

Notes:

This post is politically restricted under the terms of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989.

The Council reserves the right to alter the content of this job description, after
consultation to reflect changes to the job or services provided, without altering the
general character or level of responsibility.

Reasonable adjustments will be considered as required by the Equality Act.

The post holder is required to act at all times in accordance with the County
Council's constitution, policies, procedures and other relevant regulations.

Page 8



%= worcestershire APPENDIXA

PERSON SPECIFICATION

Post Title: Director of Public Health

Scale/Grade: Head of Service Band 1 (plus responsibility allowance)

QUALIFICATIONS / TRAINING:
It is essential that the postholder has/is:

¢ Inclusion in the GMC Specialist Register/GDC Specialist List or UK Voluntary
Register for Public Health Specialists (UKVR)
e Specialist registration with the UKPHR

Personal Qualities

The Director of Public Health is:

e Avisionary and transformational leader with a full understanding of relationships
and culture of organisations that impact on the wider determinants of health as
well as health services.

e Trustworthy and independent professional accountable to Secretary of State
through Public Health England as well as to the local population through the
Local Authority.

¢ Trained and experienced in all areas of public health practice and registered as a
public health specialist with the GMC or another appropriate regulatory body and
accountable to them for their professional practice including ethical standards. . .

e Strongly committed to teaching and research in collaboration with academic
departments.

e Up to date and can demonstrate continuing professional development through
appraisal and revalidation as a specialist with GMC or other regulator.

e Highly visible to ensure in-depth knowledge of local communities and better
working between the public and local organisations.

e Able to show intellectual rigour and personal credibility to collaborative working
and commissioning processes.

e Demonstrably accomplished in improving the health of communities.

e Able to lead across all local authority functions to district councils, NHS bodies,
the private sector and the third sector indicating the impact of investment on
public health and inequalities.

Page 9



APPENDIX A

WCC KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES
The Director of Public Health will demonstrate skills in :

Creating a Compelling Vision

Leadi

Agile

Have an in-depth understanding and knowledge of how your role fits with
and supports organisational objectives and the wider public needs.
Translate the Directorate vision into clear quantifiable goals for your
services

Expands current boundaries of thinking and present possibilities that can
take you and your Services beyond perceived limitations

Engages and inspires the service in building commitment to growth

ng Change

Be adaptable in dealing with change, ambiguity and uncertainty, acting
decisively, knowing how to challenge the status quo whilst respecting the
past

Provide the necessary direction and impetus in leading others to change;
being sensitive to the impact of change in others, whilst still dealing with
and overcoming resistance to change

Seek to evolve the Council to meet future trends by challenging the status
quo.

Thinking

Make objective decisions using sound judgment, evidence and knowledge
to provide accurate, expert and professional advice.

Use a suitable balance of rational analysis, personal intuition and
consultation with others to evaluate options before arriving at well-
reasoned justifiable decisions.

Facilitate member and officer thinking, helping them to look at issues from
different perspectives.

Use their analytical skills and personal judgement to quickly diagnose
underlying causes in a complex environment.

Take informed decisions, anticipating, tackling and mitigating against
performance issues.

Delivering Results

Strive to build a performance culture to deliver outcomes with a firm focus
on prioritisation and addressing performance issues resolutely, fairly and
promptly

Create results through a disciplined approach to business planning, goal
setting and setting meaningful targets, aligned with WCC’s strategic aims
Use clear targets and metrics to provide feedback on performance and
seek out customer-centric feedback that when acted upon will enhance
service delivery

Leading from within and Communicating with impact

Use influence and strong interpersonal skills to inspire the confidence of
elected members, local businesses, employees, council staff and other
stakeholders.

Page 10



APPENDIX A

- Lead from the front and communicate with clarity, conviction and
enthusiasm. You support principles of fairness of opportunity for all and a
dedication to a diverse range of residents.

- Establish a strong direction and a persuasive future vision; managing and
engaging with people with honesty and integrity.

- Act with authenticity, courage and conviction, responding positively to
feedback from both internal and external sources.

Fostering Teamwork and Facilitating Development

- Develop and implement strategies to enhance the performance of your
teams, maximising individual performance.

- Build cohesive teams around a common purpose and inspire allegiance,
ensuring accountability through defining clear roles and responsibilities

- Build mutually beneficial relationships, seeking opportunities to promote a
culture of collaboration and partnership

- Empower staff to solve WCC challenges through seizing responsibility and
engaging their own innovation

- Enhance your own personal performance by seeking out constructive feedback,
gaining insight and awareness of your own strengths and challenges

CORE COMPETENCY AREAS
Surveillance and assessment of the population’s health and well-being

To ensure the proper design, development and utilisation of major information
and intelligence systems to underpin public health improvement and action for
the population across disciplines and organisations.

To receive, interpret, provide and advise on highly complex epidemiological and
statistical information about the health of populations to the Local Authority, NHS
and voluntary organisations.

To ensure the use of the best available evidence base to support the assessment
of health needs, health inequalities, health impact assessment and the
identification of areas for action within the local population.

To produce an annual report on the health of the population of the County.

Assessing the evidence of effectiveness of health and healthcare
interventions, programmes and services

To provide expert public health advice and leadership to support and inform an
evidence-based approach within ethical frameworks for commissioning and
develop high quality equitable services, across primary, secondary and social
care, and across sectors including local authorities, voluntary organisations and
others, in potentially contentious and hostile environments where barriers to
acceptance may exist.

To be responsible for leading on service development, evaluation and quality
assurance governance in specific areas and for preparing and adjusting action
plans in line with changing needs and changing geographical boundaries.

To provide expert advice to support evidence based commissioning, prioritisation
of services for the population (and in some circumstances for the individual) in
order to maximise opportunities for health.

Policy and strategy development and implementation

To lead on behalf of Worcestershire County Council on the communication,
dissemination, implementation and delivery of national, regional and local policies
in respect of public health strategies, developing inter-agency and

Page 11



APPENDIX A

interdisciplinary strategic plans and programmes, with delegated authority to
deliver key public health targets.

To act in an expert advisory capacity on public health knowledge, standards and
practice, across the spectrum of public health at Board or equivalent level.

To be responsible for the development and implementation of multi-agency long-
term public health programmes as required, based on identification of areas of
potential health improvement, the diversity of local needs and the reduction of
inequalities.

To ensure proper linkages between the health agenda and strategies related to
the wider determinants including for example, community safety, the environment
and sustainability.

Leadership and collaborative working for health

To take the lead role on behalf of Worcestershire County Council in developing
inter-agency and interdisciplinary short and long-term strategic plans for securing
health improvement both in the general population and in vulnerable groups at
high risk of poor health and reduced life expectancy, in partnership with a range
of agencies such as those in the statutory, non- statutory, voluntary and private
sectors and by taking lead responsibility with a defined local authority. This
requires the ability to work cross-directorate and across other agencies and
voluntary organisations.

To work with primary care professionals and community staff to raise awareness
of their public health role.

To work collectively with WCC Directors to facilitate the integration of health,
social services and voluntary organisations to promote effective joint working to
ensure delivery of the wider government targets and improved health and
wellbeing

To influence external agencies in their public health policy decisions by working
with complex professional, managerial and population groups and other
organisations in the statutory, non-statutory and private sectors.

DEFINED COMPETENCY AREAS
Health Improvement

To be responsible for designated areas of health improvement programmes,
public health surveillance or population screening or geographical areas.

To take an appropriate leadership role in specified areas with local communities
and vulnerable and hard to reach groups, helping them to take action to tackle
longstanding and widening health inequality issues, using community
development approaches as appropriate.

To provide expert knowledge to ensure effective community involvement with
regard to all the work of the organisation including commissioning and prioritising
high cost services and to ensure that policies and strategies are interpreted,
developed and implemented at all levels.

Health Protection

To take responsibility for safeguarding the health of the population in relation to
communicable disease, infection control and environmental health

To communicate effectively and diplomatically with a wide audience including the
media and the public to change practice in highly challenging circumstances such
as communicable disease outbreaks, chemical incidents, immunisation and
screening.

Page 12



APPENDIX A

To seek assurance through the Health and Well-being Board that key health
protection systems are in place and that effective surveillance of the local
population in this regard is in place with action plans where improvement is
needed.

Service Improvement

To provide expert advice to support evidence based commissioning, prioritisation
of health and social care services for the population (and in some circumstances
provide highly specialised advice on preferred treatment options or protocols
based on the evidence for individual patients) in order to maximise opportunities
for health.

To be responsible for implementation of NICE and National Service Frameworks
or equivalent national standards, guidance and frameworks.

To lead the development of clinical networks, clinical governance and audit.

To review evidence and providing highly specialised advice on preferred
treatment options or protocols based on the evidence for individual patients.

Public Health Intelligence

To analyse and evaluate quantitative and qualitative data and research evidence
from a range of sources to make recommendations and inform decision making
which has long term impacts.

To compare, analyse and interpret highly complex options for running projects
identified as key public health priorities, and communicate this information across
organisations and the local community.

To be responsible for the identification and implementation of appropriate health
outcome measures, care pathways, protocols and guidelines for service delivery
across patient pathways for the local population.

To work with the information and intelligence arm of Public Health England and
other organisations to strengthen local, regional and national public health
intelligence and information capacity.

EC March 2016

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	6 Appointment of the Director of Public Health
	Appendix A -JD-PS Director of PH
	Cv FRANCES HOWIE august 2016


